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- Members' report

Management, on behalf of the Members, presents its report and the audited financial statements of Hogan
Lovells International LLP (hereafter referred to as "the LLP") for the year ended 31 December2023.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are the étatutory accounts for the LLP and reflect the results for the year ended
31 December 2023. The financial statements consolidate the accounts of the LLP and all its subsidiary
undertakings ("the group”), drawn up for the year ended 31 December 2023. ) p;

Principal activity’

The pnncnpal activity of the LLP and the Group is the prows;on of legal services from offi ices in 21 countries,
including branches in 7 countries. :

Management team ; ’ : ' ‘

Overall responS|b|I|ty for the management of the LLP rests with the management team Throughout the year
except as indicated below, the following have been Members of the management team

‘Marie-Aimee de Dampierre, Chair*

Miguel Zaldivar, CEO*
Michael Davison, Deputy CEO
Janice Hogan

Andreas Von Falck*

Desmond Hogan

Karen Hughes*

Adrian Walker (reS|gned 1 May 2024)
Owen Chan*

Lioyd-Parker

Patrick Ayad

Penny Angell

Tobias Faber*

Sebastien Gros

James Doyle

‘Jose Maria Balana

Miriam Gundt (appointed 1 Jantiary 2023)
Detlaf Hass (appointed 1 January 2023)
Andrew Gallagher* (appointed 1 May 2024)

k= designated member

Except as indicated above, there are no other designated members.

Finance and capital structure

The LLP is fi naﬁced by a combination of Members' capital, undistributed profits (including tax retentions)
and borrowing facilities arranged with a number of banks. Members’ capital increased during the year
ended 31 December 2023 by £14 million to £126.1 million (2022: £112.1 mllllon)

The Group had £318.8 million of net cash at 31 December 2023 (2022 £294.7 million). Further details of
the financial position of the group, its cash flows, lqu|d|ty posutlon and borrowmg facilities are descnbed in
the notes to the accounts.
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Members' report (continued)
"~ Going concern |

Our Undérlying business performance for the first half of 2024 has been strong, exhibiting the benefits of our
global capability, the continued demonstration of the strength of our client work across our practice areas,
industry sectors, and regions, and the positive effects of tight cost control in the current economic conditions. .

Management has produced forecasts and cash flow projections, that have also been sensitised to reflect
potential declines in revenue in the latter part of 2024 and into 2025. These démonstrate the Group has
sufficient cash reserves to enable the Group to meet its obligations as they fall due for a period of at least 12
months from the date of signing of these financial statements.

While there remains an ongoing risk of the economic environment having an adverse impact on some
of our clients, taking into account our broad practice, extensive geographic reach, available bank
facilities and the flexibility we have to vary the timing of payments to our Partners, and having
considered the group's forecasts and projections, Management is satisfied that it is appropriate for
these accounts to be prepared on the going concern basis.

Members’ profit share, drawings and the subscription and repayment of Members’ capital

In the year ended 31 December 2023, all Members were partners and shared in the profits of the LLP.
Where a Member receives his or her remuneration as an employee or consultant, this is presented under
the heading "Members' remuneration gharged as an expense" in the consolidated income statement.

Each Member's capital subscription is linked to his or her share of profit and is repaid in full on ceasing to
be a Member. The rate of capital subscription is determined by the Board depending upon the fi nancung
reqwrements of the busmess

Members draw a proportlon of their profit share in monthly on account instalments together with interim

distributions during the year in which the profit is generated. The balance of their profits, in most cases net
of a tax retention, is paid in instalments in the subsequent year. All payments are made subject to the cash

" requirements of the business. Tax retentions are paid to the relevant tax authority as required with any

excess being released to Members as appropriate. '

" As Members draw a proportion of their expected profit share during the year before the profits for the year
have been determined and allocated to them, by the year-end their personal current accounts with the
LLP are in deficit. The total of these current accounts is shown in the Consolidated Balance Sheet within
“Amounts due from Members”. Once the profit for the year has been allocated, the Members’ current
accounts are typically in surplus by the amounts retained to settle their tax liabilities and the amount of
their share of the year’s profit in excess of that already drawn.
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Members' report (continued)

Energy and carbon report

. Climate-related financial diaclosures

Hogan Lovells is committed to supporting |nclu5|ve and sustainable development in which people and ..
"planet prosper. Delivering on our commitments to Responsible Business is one of our five strategic
priorities and incorporates the ambition to become a legal industry leader in relation to sustainability.

This séction of our report is in.accordance with the Limited Liability Partnerships (Accounts and Audit)

(Application of Companies Act 2006) Regulations 2008, as amended by the Limited Liability Partnerships

(Climate-related Financial Disclosure) Regulations 2022 These disclosures are publlshed for. the LLP’s
. financial year ended 31.December 2023.

. ~

. ‘Governance
Roles, responsibility and accountability

Formulation and delivery of our plans is led by our Head of Global Sustainability, Policy and Strategy who
reports directly to the deputy CEO, who is also Head of Responsible Business. The role of Head of Global
Sustainability, Policy and Strategy includes responsibility for the firm's own response to climate-related
‘issues and other aspects of sustainability within our business and within our communities. Key decisions
are made by the International Management Committee (IMC), chalred by the CEO and reported to‘the
global Board. : ] L

The Head of Global Sustainability, Policy and Strategy reports regularly to both the IMC and the Board.
Formal reports to the IMC are required once every six months so as to monitor progress, with other
‘interim updates made to the deputy CEO on a regular basis (usually weekly). The annual budgets are
approved by the IMC and other major decisions are taken to the IMC on an ad hoc basis.

We-have established a global network of sustainability stewards and committees in our offices worldwide
-who have responsibility for the ‘collection of sustainability-related data and implementation of local -
initiatives. Each office has an-individual transition plan detailing the emissions generated in the office,

- information highlighting which sustainability topics are important locally, and details of emissions
reduction initiatives. Best practice from these Iocal initiatives are shared via an internal global platform.

Our sustainability commvttees utilise the Skl"S and expenence of our cllent-facmg and business team
‘people. .

'Oversight and reporting

The Hogan Lovells Climate Transmon plan has been drafted to demonstrate how the firm intends to meet
its GHG emissions targets and manage risk and opportunity whilst transitioning to a low carbon economy.’
it has been approved by the Board, the IMC, the Deputy CEO, and CEO. All receive regular updates on
progress made towards our Science Based Targets Initiative (SBTi) emissions reductions targets and
other sustainability goals. .

Our sustainability.team work with a wide range of stakeholders inside and outside the firm and collate
" information on potential risks and opportunities into a scenario matrix which is updated every two years.

Client related climate-related opportunities are identified and managed by the firm’s ESG practice. In

addition, in 2023 the. firm conducted a separate materiality assessment to identify: material topics,

including those relating to climate.

7/
The overall process detailed in this report covers the HLI Group. Subsudlary entltles are not required to
undertake their own assessments.
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Members' report (continued)
Energy and ca'rbon report (cbntinﬁe&)
Materiality exercise

Materiality assessments are commonly undertaken by companies to optimize efforts to strategically
integrate ESG topics into successful business strategy and fo mlmmlze potential negative impacts.

Hogan Lovells engaged ERM to undertake our first double materiality assessment. The process involved
a desk-based review of our strategy and the policies we have in place, as well as a peer and industry
trends analysis to create a list of ESG topics potentially relevant to our firm. Key internal and external
stakeholders, including clients, were engaged to identify the possible positive and negative impacts
associated with each topic, and ultimately prioritize and determine the. materiality of these ESG
(environmental, social, governance} topics to,our firm.

The materlallty of the toplcs was assessed from two perspectlves

- How these toplcs potentially impact fi nanual performance and Iong-term enterprise value; and
- How management of these topics potentially impacts society and-the environment.

The perspectives of stakeholders on our material topics were gathered using different engagement

methods and sources. We took a dual approach to assessing our impact and considered our direct

operational impact, as well as the |mpact we mlght indirectly have through our ESG-related service
offering.

Topic scores were derived by consideration of all stakeholder inputs. The scores informed the
prioritisation of topics, which was discussed and validated by the Materiality Assessment Working Group
which included senior partners and senior business services colleagues. ,

The assessment identified ten material topics. We are now working to incorporate the results into our
business and strategy planning, and to consider the results when formulating our approach to reportmg
Topics relevant to climate were included in our scenario analysis planning.

Risk management

_Our process for identifying, assessing and responding to climate-related risks and opportunities is an
integral part of our wider risk management framework that is overseen from a governance perspective
by the Risk Management Committee, which includes our Head of Global Sustainability, Policy and
Strategy. Our firmwide risk register consolidates material risk exposures across short, medium and long-
term risk horizons and facilitates the firm’'s response and monitoring of the risk profile. This process is
coordinated by our dedicated Director of Risk and is subject to oversight from senior firm management.

Identified principal climate change risks and opportunities
Risks and opportunities are assessed over the short (up to 1 year in line with annual targets identified in

relevant strategic and operational plans), medium (1-3 years).and long-term (3+ years) timescales. These
time frames are consistent with those used elsewhere in the firm for strategic planning. For the purposes

of evaluating risks and opportunltles under dlfferent climate scenarios the analysis focuses on medium -

and long-term timescales.
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Members' report (continued)

Energy and carbon report (continued)

We have reviewed potential risks and opportunities as part of our prior annual CDP reporting and in 2023
we undertook a materiality assessment which included identification of material climate related issues.
We have considered a range of scenarios but have focused on two scenarios (i) a s¢enario where the
increase in global temperatures are aligned to 1.5°C by 2100 (ii) a scenario where global temperatures

. iincrease by approximately 2.4°C by 2100. Assumptions included in the analysis under these scenarios

include the use of legal mechanisms to achieve emissions reductions in line with national and
international commitments, increased insurance, procurement and maintenance costs resulting from a

range of factors, potential instability in energy costs and provision during the transition to a low carbon

economy and additional disclosure requirements on all parts of the Hogan LoveIIs value chain.

Considering the likely risks and opportunities regarding transition, mitigation and’ adaptatlon under these

- scenarios we have identified the following potentlal rlsks and opportunities which are Ilkely to be material

to our busmess

Regulation — Both scenarios are likely to lead to increase in regulation over the medium to long term,
including reporting and disclosure requirements,>to enable escalation of mitigation and adaptation
activities. An.increase in regulation requires an upregulation of activities to track and meet requirements,
in addition to an opportunity to provide enhanced legal services underpinned by practical experience.

Reputatlon — Both scenarios give rise to potential reputational risks in the short to medium term whlch'

could arise from issues such as greenwashing, value chain emissions, ‘and ESG scoring. In response to
these risks we have appointed an ESG reporting manager to provide accuracy and consistency of ESG-
related data and are implementing measures to facilitate |mproved estimation of our value chain
emussnons and ESG due’ dlllgence .

' Operatlonal Different scenarios provnde dlfferent levels of risk to our business operatlons We have

established risk: management protocols for all our offices which consider a range of risks: including

physical disruption and we are undertaking to include fonNard Iook|ng analysis of our climate related risks

in lease renewal/new lease process.

Our ongoing mitigation initiatives include:

- Working towards the elimination of our sources of Scope 1 emissions by switching to biofuels

. and electric energy sources
- . Working towards achieving 100% renewable energy for business operations
- Increasing the energy efficiency of our operations and reducing our overall energy use

- .~ +Working with our value chain to reduce our scope 3 emissions including by use of a supplier

code of conduct and development of a supplier engagement program

In the latter half of 2024 we will move into the next phase of our scenario analysis to provide more detailed
assessment specific to the different areas of our business in the medium to long term. The results of this
analysis will then be used to shape our ritigation strategies. We have already published a Climate
Transition Plan, to be’ updated at least annually, which. detalls our strategy for emissions reductions,
mcludmg our targets and progress towards them.

Hogan Lovells’ well established cross-sector ESG practice has an annual strategic plan that leverages
knowledge and experience across the firm to identify and act on new opportunities arising from changes
in legislation, legal risk and business practice responsive to climate transition activities..

The analysis shows that climate change will affect-Hogan Lovells to varying degrees in terms of-both

transition and physical factors. Our focus on ensuring appropriate sustainability ‘goals, accurate
sustainability reporting, and assessment and mitigation of operational risks in addition to the business

"development work of the ESG practice supports our belief in the resilience and innovative ability of the

firm to transition to a lower-carbon model and create new growth opportunities.
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‘Members' report (continued)

. Energy and carbon report (continued)

Currently our scenario analysis relevant to our business model and strategy is qualitative' rather than

quantitative. We are taking steps to consider our potential risks and opportunities in detail and devise T

targeted responses to provide additional resilience to our business.

We have set greenhouse gas emissions reductions targets for Scope 1 and 2 {market) emissions, and
an engagement target for our procurement related Scope 3 emissions which have been validated by the
Science Based Targets initiative along with a Net Zero target for 2050. Global performance against these
targets is reported annually in our CDP submission, and publlcly available Respon5|ble Business Report,
and Climate Transition Plan. .

" The key performance indicators used to assess progress against our SBT| targets are (|) greenhouse gas

emissions reported in tonnes of eCO2 and (ii) the proportion of our suppliers by emissions covering
purchased goods and services, capital goods, upstream transportation and distribution, and business
travel, which have science-based targets for emissions reduction (near term Scope 3 target). Progress
against ‘our global emissions targets is reported in our published Climate Transition Plan. We have
assessed the proportion of our suppliers covered by our Scope 3 near term target and we are also

- developing a process for engagement with our rélevant suppllers

We also measure, and where necessary estimate, other performance |nd|cators including energy.and
water use and waste generatlon - :




Hogan Lovells Intemational LLP Annual Report & Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 o 7
. ________________________________________________________________]

Members' report (continu'ed)‘
Energy and carbon report (contmued)

Hogan Lovells is a signatory to the UN Race to Zero and has set fIrlede carbon emissions reduction
targets that are consistent with limiting global warming to 1.5°C. We have set’ targets validated by the

. Science Based Targets Initiative, which include achieving a 90% reduction in Scope 1 and Scope 2

(market based) emissions from a 2019 baseline by 2030

Our transition plan includes sourcing renewable energy where possible, eliminating sources of Scope 1

- emissions, implementing new business travel policies, setting climate related requirements for our

suppliers, engaging with our clients to support their sustainability journeys, and engaglng with our peers
to support the decarbonisation of the legal sector.

Our greenhouse gas emissions are disclosed annually through'CDP_and ot'her.reporting frameworks,
covering our global portfolio. This report covers our UK operations, as required under the Limited Liability

Partnerships Regulations 2008 as amended. Since our last disclosure we have completed a re-baselining

exercise following the migration of our .data to a specialist platform and the provision of additional
information concerning our baseline and early years sources of emissions. These changes are reflected
in the figures reported this year.

Our relevant energy use and carbon related emissions stem from our three offices, two in London and
“one in Birmingham, and our business travel. The energy use is summarised below.

"Energy Source Units 2019 2021 12022 2023
baseline | . restated restated | -
Biogas : . kWh - .- 213,098.| - 105,726
Oil (Gas) o . kWh 467,724 - - -
Natural Gas kWh . 8,023,408 | 6,819,469 | 6,519,347 5,019,949
Electricity ‘kWh 8,676,156 6,229,295 | . 6,949,145 6,523,191
Total kWh 17,167,288 | 13,048,764 | 13,681,591 | 11,648,866
Energy lrltensity (measured. , ' '
against rentable floor area) kWh/m? 551 |. 481 547 ' 402

We have decreased our overall energy consumptuon since the 2019 basellne which has in part been due
to the introduction of energy efficiency measures, particularly in our largest site in London. In addltlon in
2022 we moved one of our premises to a more efficient building with a smaller floor area.

" The carbon emissions associated with the energy use in our offices is summarised below. No business

travel emissions are included as we purchase transportation services and do not procure fuel to supply
our own vehicles. The energy supplying our electric vehicles would be captured under Scope 2.

2019 2021 2022

. GHG-.-Emissions (tCOze) baseline restated restated 2023
Scope 1 : 1,595 1,249 1,190 - 917
Scope 2 (location-based) . - 2,218 1,322 1,343 1,342

- Total . 3,813 . 2,571 2,533 . 2,259

The calculation of carbon emissions (including scope 3) follows the GHG protocol methodology and is
based on emissions factors for 2023 published by the Department for Environment, Food and Rural
Affairs. Scope 2 emissions are calculated according to. the location-based-method for comparison,
although the majority of our UK electricity use is now supplied.from a renewable source. "
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Members' report (continued)

Auditor o . :
Deloitte LLP will be proposed for reappointment.

Signed on behalf of the Board

Marie-Aimee de Dampierre

‘Chair

26 September 2024
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Statement of members’ responsibilities

The Members are responS|ble for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable Iaw and regulations. -

The Limited Liability Partnership (Accounts and Audit) (Application of Companies Act 2006) Regulations
‘2008 require the Members to prepare .financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
~.Members have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom adopted
|ntemat|onal accounting standards. The financial statements also comply with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the IASB. The fi nancial statements are also required by law to
. be prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, as applicable to limited Ilabullty partnerships. -

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial statements present fairly for each financial year
the firm’s financial positjon, financial performance and cash flows. This requires the faithful representation
of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with the definitions and recognition
criteria for assets, liabilities; income and expenses set out in the International Accounting Standards Board’s
‘Framework for the preparation and presentation of financial statements™. In virtually all circumstances, a
fair presentation will be achieved by compllance with all applicable IFRSs. However, Members are also
required to: i

. properly select and apply accounting policies;

» present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provndes relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information; and .

e provide additional disclosures when compliance with the spemf ¢ requirements of the financial
‘reporting framework are insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular
transactions, other events and conditions on the entity's fnanmal position and financial
performance. . -

2\ . : . :
. The Members are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that disclose with reasonable

accuracy at any time the financial position of the firm and enable them to ensure’ that the financial
-statements comply with the Companies Act 2006, as applicable to limited liability partnerships. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the firm and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

These responsibilities were exercised by the LLP Board on behalf of the Members.




--~-—~--«-»—--——Our—responsibilities-and—the-resbensibilities»of-the-members—With respeét-to-»geing-eoncem-are described
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Independent auditor's report to the members of
Hogan Lovells International LLP

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion:

‘e the financial statements of Hogan Lovells international LLP (the ‘parent limited Iiability

partnership’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) give a true and fair view of the state of the group S .

and of the limited liability partnership’s affairs as at 31 December 2023 and of the group’s profit
for the year then ended;

e the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
adopted international accounting standards and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB); .

e the parent limited liability partnership financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with United Kingdom adopted internationa! accounting standards and as applied in
accordance with thé provisions of the Companles Act 2006 as applied to limited liability
partnerships; and

e the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 as applied to limited liability partnerships.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

the consolidated income statement;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;.

the consolidated and parent limited liability partnership balance sheets;

the consolidated and parent limited liability partnership cash flow statements;

the consolidated and parent limited liability partnership statement of changes in equ1ty and
the related notes 1 to 28.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom adopted international accounting standards and, as regards the parent limited liability
partnership financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006
as applied to limited liability partnerships.

Basis for opinion ‘
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and

applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the group and of the parent limited liability partnership in accordence with the -

ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the
Financial Reporting Council’s (the 'FRC’s’) Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evndence we have

obtained is‘sufficient and approprlate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the members’ use of the gomg concern
basis of accountlng in the preparatlon of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectlvely, may cast significant doubt on the group’s and parent
limited liability partnership’s ability.to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months
from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Hogan Lovells International LLP (continued)

BN

- in the relevant sections of this report.

ther information

- The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The members are responsible for the other information
contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements ‘does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other.information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material
misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there i is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Re_sponsibilities of members

As explained more fully in the statement of members’ responsibilities, the members are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and

for such internal control as the members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

- In preparing the financial statements, 'the members are responsible for assessing the group's and the

parent limited liability partnership’s ability to cJontlnue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the members
either intend to liquidate the group or the parent limited Ilablllty partnership or to cease operatlons or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in‘accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can. arise _from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

.aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
FRC’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s
report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

" Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design

procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect
of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to wh;ch our procedures are capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.
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Independent auditor's report to the members of
Hogan Lovells International LLP (continued)

We considered the nature of the Group's industry and its control environment, and reviewed the Group’s
documentation of their policies and procedures’ relating to fraud and compliance with laws and
regulations.

We also enquired of management and those charged with governance about their own identification and
assessment of the risks of irregularities including obtaining and reviewing the Group’s documentation of

. its policies and procedures relating to:

¢ identifying, evaluating and complylng with laws and regulations and whether they were aware of
any instances of non-compliance;

¢ - detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual,
suspected or alleged fraud, and

e reviewing internal controls established to mmgate nsks of fraud or non-compliance with laws and
regulations;

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the Group operates in, and
|dent|f ed the key laws and regulations that:

e had a direct effect on the determlnation of material amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The key laws and regulations we considered in this context including Companies
‘Act 2006 and the tax legislation.

+ do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be
fundamental to the Group’s ablllty to operate or to avoid a matena| penalty, mcludlng UK Bribery
Act.

We discussed among the audit engagement team regarding the opportunities and incentives that may

" exist within the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements.

As a result of performing the above, we |dent|f ed the greatest potential for fraud in the followmg area,
and our specific procedures performed to address it are described below:

o We presume a risk of material misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue recognltlon This
has been pinpointed to the valuation of amounts to be billed to clients, more specifically the
accuracy of the realisation rates applied in the calculation of amounts to be billed to clients. To
address this risk, we have performed the following procedures:

o . Recalculated the realisation rates used, including assessing and challenging the -

methodology applied;

o Performed substantive testing over amounts to be billed to clients through post year-
end billing analysis; and _

o Assessed the design and implementation of internal controls around the valuation® of
amounts to be billed to clients and the calculation and LLP's methodology for the
realisation rates. -

In- common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to
respond to the risk of management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override
of controls, we tested the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether
the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated
the business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of
business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:

¢ reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess
compliance with provisions of relevant laws and regulations descnbed as having a direct effect
on the financial statements;
e performing analytical procedures to |dent|fy any unusual or unexpected relationships that may
: |nd|cate risks of matenal mlsstatement due to fraud



"~ Jeremy Black ACA (Senior statutory audlitdr) :
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Independent auditor's report to the members of

‘Hogan Lovells International LLP (continued)

« enquiring of management and in-house legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation
and claims, and instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations; and
» reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Matters on which we are required to report by exceptioh

Under the Companies ‘Act 2006 as applied to limited liability partnershlps we are required to report in

respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent limited liability partnershlp, or
returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

e the parent limited liability partnership- financial statements .are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns; or

¢ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

" Use of our report

This report is made- solely to the limited liability partnership’s rhembers as a body, in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to limited liability partnerships. Our audit

work has been undertaken so that we mlght state to the limited liability partnership’s members those

matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the limited
liability partnership and the limited liability partnershlps members -as a body, for our audit work for this
report, or for the oplnlons we have formed.

For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor

" London, United Kingdom

27 September 2024
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Consolidated income statement

Note . ]
2023 12022
£000 . £'000
- Revenue 4 1,200,262 1,089,785
Other operating income' 3,639 4,146
Operating exbe‘nses . 7
Staff costs 6 (421,183) (386,582)
Depreciation and amortisation 10/12 (13,967) (17,633)
Depreciation and amortisation — Right-of-use assets 14 (47,186) (48,790)
Other operating expenses (206,859) (195,407)
Profit from operations 514,706 445,519
Investment income Y 7,319 964
Finance expense 7 (9,404) (5,755) -
Profit before tax -5 512,621 440,728
. Tax expense 4 8 (38,672) (35,279)
‘Profit before Members' remuneration and profit share 473,949 405,449
Members' remune'ravt.ion charged as an expense (59,173) (57,499)
‘Profit for the period for division amongst equity Members . 9 ) 414,776 - 347,950

. , :
The results from both years were derived from continuing operations.
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Note 2023 2022 -
. £’000. £'000

Profit for the financial period for division amongst equnty 414.776 ' 347 950
Members ’ S

. Other comprehensive income: . -
Items that will not be recIassnﬁed subsequently to the
consolidated i income statement
Actuarial loss on defined beneﬁt pension scheme - 21 (2,500) (7,600)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the '

. consolidated income statement:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (9,801) 23,199
'Other combrehenstve (losé)/gain for the period (12,3'01) 15,599
Total compréhensive income fot' the beriod'_ - 402,475 363,549
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Consolidated balance sheet

Note . 2023 2022
£000 - £000
Assets A
Non-current assets . . .
Intangible assets ' 10 " 114 580
~ Property, plant and equipment , ‘ . . 12 . 61,128 45,808
Right-of-use assets S 14 200,534 190,448
Finance lease receivables . - ' 17 S 1,662 282
Investments : 15 2,256 465 . -
_ ) o 265,694 237,583
Current assets . . .
Client and other receivables . ) .16 649,905 566,982 N
Current tax receivables- . ' , 7,208 4,918 -
Finance lease receivables ' 17 ) 248 : 93
Cash and cash equivalents : . ' 318,848 294,702
g . 976,209 = 866,695
Total assets - - ' ' 1,241,903  1,104,278"
Liabilities .
. Current liabilities .
Trade and other bayables ’ 19 . 326,953 - 309,084
" Current tax liabilities T . . . 14,426 14,227
Lease liabilities ‘ 18 63,296 61,207
Members’ capital - 22 : 126,077 112,095
Provisions , A ' 20 - . 8,766 426
: , ' 539,518 . 497,039
Non-current liabilities ) N ' 4 :
Lease liabilities . ) ) 18 169,902 158,338
R%tiréme_nt benefit scheme deficit T T2t C 7,700 7,050 -
Provisions 20 . : . 6,256 6,425
: 183,858 171,813
Equity : . . )
Members' other reserves : . . - 22 ' 518,527 435,426
. Total liabilities and equity E . . 1,241,903 1,104,278
Members’ interests - ' : . .
. Current assets — amounts due from Members - 161/22° \ ' (144,225)  (109,917)
Current liabilities — Members’ capital _ 22 126,077 112,095
Equity — other reserves , ’ 22 . 518,527 435,426

Total Members’ interests : . 500,379 437,604
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Note 2023 2022
£'000 £000
Assets
Non-current assets P

. Intangible assets . 11 102 - 562
Property, plant and eqmpment 13 42,183 - . 33,829
Right-of-use assets 14 124,460 113,154
Finance lease recelvables 17 - 187 282
Investments . 15 12,936 11,155

- 179,868 158,982

_ Current assets
Client and other.receivables. 16 517,836 445,255
Current tax receivables 4,888 3,238 -
Finance lease receivables 17 81 57
‘Cash and cash equivalents : © 266,059 252,243

788,864 - 700,793

" Total assets ) 968,732 859,775
Liabilities
Current liabilities . .
Trade and other payables 19 274,135 269,937
Current tax liabilities 13,739 - . 13,543

- Lease liabilities 18 37,7118 35,104
Members' capital 23 126,077 112,095
Provisions 20 8,766 426

_ 460,435 431,105
Non-current liabilities :

" Lease liabilities 18 110,823 100,574
Retirement benefit scheme deficit 21 7,700 7,050 -
Provisions 20 6,256 6,425

' 124,779 114,049
Equity :
Members' other reserves 23 383,518 314,621
Total liabilities and equity : ' 968,732 859,775
Members’ interests .
Current assets — amounts due from Members 16 /123 (144,225)  (109,917)
Current liabilities — Members' capital 23 126,077 112,095
Equity - other reserves ' 23 383,518 314,621
Total Members’ interests 365,370 316,799

The profit for division amongst members for the fi nancual period dealt W|th in the financial statements

. of the LLP was £320,602,000 (2022: £261,185,000..

. / : .
These financial statements of Hogan Lovells International LLP, registered number OC323639,

including the consolidated financial statements, were approved by the Board on behalf of the
Members and signed on behalf of the Members on 26 September 2024 by:

M a(ML—

Marie-Aimee de Dampierre, Chair

\

Michael Davison, Deputy CEO

Miguel Zaldivar, CEQ
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Consolidated cash flow stafement

2023

Note 2022

£000 - £000

Net cash from operations 24 495,755 453,846
Investing activities .

- Purchase of intangible assets o ) (13) (117)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (30,283) (20,583)
Acquisition of joint venture ' - ~ (203) .
Interest received : 7,227 953
Finance lease income v 721 515

"Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 312 - 19
Net cash used in investing activities ’ (22,036) (19,416)
Financing activities .

Members’ capital introduced N 20,044 18,139
Capital repayments to Members . (6,062) . (8,148)
Payments to and on behalf of Members (407,786) (375,168)
- Interest paid ’ ‘ ‘ (431) (176)
Repayment of lease liabilities (52,842) (50,137)

'Net cash used in financing activities (447,077) (415,490)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 26,642 18,940
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 294,702 272,551

" Effects of foreign exchange rate changes on cash (2,496) 3,21

318,848 294,702

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
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Hogan Lovells International LLP cash flow statement
. - ‘ Note 2023 2022
£000 £000
Net cash from operation's 24 358,126 - 342,581
Investing activities B .
Purchase of intangible assets ‘ (2) (71)
"Purchase of property, plant and equipment (19,173) \ (12,035)

. Acquisition of joint venture ‘ - (203)
Intérest received 7,070 920
"Finance lease income , 660 103
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 312 20
Net cash used in investing activities ' (11,133) (11,266)

._Financ.ing activities :

_ Members’ capital introduced 20,044 18,139
Capital repayments to Members (6,062) (8,148) .
Paymentsto‘and on behalf of Members . (311,381) (293,605)
Interest paid (421) (172)
Repayment of lease liabilities (34,789) (32,661) -
Net cash used in financing activities (332,609) (316,447)
Net increase in cash and césh equi_vélents 14,384 14,868
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 252,243 236,836
Effects of foreign exchange rate changes on cash (568) 539

266,059 252,243

' Césh and cash equivalents at end of period
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- Consolidated statemenf of changes in equity

‘ 2022

Not 2023

oe £'000 £000

Equity at 1 January ) : 435,426 431,011
Profit for the financial period attributable to equity Members . 414,776 347,950

" Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension scheme (2,500) (7,600)
' Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (9,801) 23,199
" Total comprehensive income for the period : 402,475 363,549
Profit allocated to Members ‘ c .(319,374) (359,134)
Equity at 31 December : © 22 518,527 435,426

Hogan Lovells International LLP statement of changes in

equity . -
‘ Note 2023 2022
£'000 £°000
Equity at 1 January _ » ' ) 314,621 320,991
Profit for the financial‘period attributable to equity Members : 320,602 261,185
Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension scheme ) (2,500) (7,600)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (11,799) 17,859
_Total comprehensive income for the period 306,303 271,444
Profit ailocated to Members ‘ : ' (237,406) (277,814)
Equity at 31 December 23 383,518 314,621
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Notes to the financial statements
1. . General information

Hogan Lovells International LLP is a limited liability partnership tncorporated in the United Kingdom and
registered in England and Wales. Its registered off ice is Atlantlc House, Holborn Viaduct, London
EC1A 2FG. :

The principal activity of the LLP is the pro\/ision of legal services.

. ' o ¢
The group’s principal operations are in the United Kingdom and these financial statements are.
presented in pounds sterling. Operations outside of the Unlted Kingdom are |ncluded in accordance
with the policies set out below.

2. Accounting policies -

The principal accounting policies are summarised below. They have all been applled consnstently
throughout the current year and the previous year, unless otherwise noted. . .

-

Accountmg conventlon

The fi nanCIaI statements have been prepared in accordance with United Kingdom adopted international
accounting standards and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) on the historical cost basis amended for certain items
at fair value and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to limited liability partnerships
reporting under IFRS. Histor_ical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goodds and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless ‘of whether that price is directly observable or estlmated using another valuation technique.

Going concern

As stated in the Report to Members the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern.
basis.

Management has produced forecasts and cash flow projections, that have also been sensitised to
reflect potential declines in revenue in the latter part of 2024 and into 2025. These demonstrate the

"-Group has. sufficient cash reserves to enable the Group to meet its obligations as they fall due for a
period of at least 12 months from the date of signing of these financial statements.

While there remains an ongoing risk of the economic environment having an adverse impact on some
of our clients, in relation to uncertain factors including macro-economic factors, taking into account our
broad practice, extensive geographic reach, available bank facilities and the flexibility we have to vary
the timing of payments to our Partners, and having considered the group's forecasts and projections,-
Management is satlsf ed that it is appropriate for these accounts to be prepared on the going concern
basis. .

ke
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

. Basis of preparation

The group financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the LLP and entities controlled
by the LLP (its subsidiary undertakings). Control is achieved where the LLP has the power over the
investee; is exposed, or has rights, to a variable return.from its involvement with the investee; and has
the ability to use its power to affect its returns. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by the group.
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

No individual profit and loss account is presented for the LLP as permitted by section 408 of the
Companies Act 2006. The profit for division amongst members for the financial year dealt with in the
financial statements of the LLP was £320,602,000 (2022: £261,185,000).

New and revised IFRS accountingl standards

At the date of authorisation of these financial statéments, the Group has not applied the following new
and revised IFRS Accounting Standards that have been issued but are not yet.effective:

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets betweén an Investor
’ and its Associate or Joint Venture
Amendments to |IAS 1 . Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
Amendmentsto IAS 1 ' Non-current Liabilities with Coyéna'nts
Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 ' ‘ Supplier‘Finance Arrangements
Amendments to IFRS 16 . Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The members do not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material
impact on the financial statements of the Group in future periods.

Foreign currencies

~ The individual financial statements of each of the group's operations are presented in the currency of
the primary economic environment in which it operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the
group financial statements, the results and financial position of each operation are expressed in sterling,
which is the functional currency of the LLP, and the presentation currency for the group financial
) statements
Transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the entity concerned are
recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities which are not denominated in the functional currency of the entity concerned are translated at
the rates ruling at the balance sheet date. These translation differences are dealt with in the income
statement.

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for
differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
. neither planned nor likely to occur, which form part of the net investment in a foreign operation, and
which are recognised in the forelgn currency translation reserve and recognised in profit or loss on
disposal of the net investment.

The results of the group’s operations where the functional currency is not sterling are translated at the
average rates of éxchange for the period, and their balance sheets at the rates of exchange ruling at
the balance sheet date. Differences arising on'the translation of the opening net-assets and the resuilts
of these operations are accounted for in the consoclidated statement of comprehensive income.



Hogan Lovells Intemational LLP Annual Report & Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 23
- ________________________________________________________________________________________________|

2. Accounting policies (continued)

Revenue : A ) '

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract With a customer. It represents the
fair value of the consideration receivable in respect of professional services provided during the period,
exclusive of recoverable expenses and value-added taxes.

A contract with a customer is recognised when a contract is legally enforceable by the Group. For each
contract with a customer, the Group performs the following, as required by the five-step model included within
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers: it identifies the contract with a customer, identifies the
performance obligation in the contract, determines the transaction price, the Group allocates the transaction
price to the performance obligation and it recognises revenue as the performance obligation is satisfied in a
manner that depicts the transfer of the services promised to the client.

The Group recognises revenue over time. This is primarily because the performance of its services does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date ) .

The Group does not provide extended terms on its services and therefore no significant financing components

are identified by the Group. The Group applies the revenue constraint in respect of variable consideration by

estimating the amount recoverable from clients on unbilled items. This estimate is based on assessment of

the Group's historical recoverability rates, contingencies, agreements with clients and amounts deemed

. irecoverable. Revenue is only recognised on contingent matters from the point at Wthh it is highly probable
that a sngnn" cant reversal in the amount of revenue recognised will not occur.

Amounts to be billed to clients are contract assets, recognised when a performance obligation has been
satisfied but not yét billed. Contract assets are transferred to client receivables when the right to consideration
is unconditional and billed per the terms of the contractual agreement. Billings are at penodlc intervals or upon
achievement of contractual milestones.

Based on the above, the Group is using the practical expedient provuded by IFRS 15 121, from providing
further information about its remaining performance obligations. .

Intangible assets

Where computer software is_not an integral part of a related item of computer hardware, the software -
is treated as an intangible asset, held at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment loss.

Consideration péid-to purchase the Hogan & Hartson client base'in certain offices has been recognised
as an intangible asset, held at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment loss.

Amortisation is provided to write off the cost less the estimated residual value of intangible assets on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful economic lives, which are as follows:

Computer software . : 3-5years
Consideration for client base 8 years

Property,. plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment loss. The
gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds

and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in income.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost-less the estimated residual value of property, plant and
equipment by equal instalments over the estimated useful economic lives as follows:

. Leasehold improvements ~ 5-10years
Fixtures and fittings - 4 - S'years
Computer equipment 3-5years
Motor vehicles 4 years -

Assets under construction Depreciation in line with respectlve category will be applled once assets
. come into use
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2. Accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other
assets, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced toits. recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Investments

Investments in Group interests are stated at cost less provision for impairment. Investments are
considered to be impaired when their carrying value is greater than their estimated recoverable amount.
Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method and are recognised initially in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the joint venture.

Taxation

"The taxation payable on profits df the limited liability partnership in' most jurisdictions, including the UK,
is the personal liability of the Members. A retention from profit distributions is made to fund the taxation
payments on behalf of Members.

The tax expense represents the sum of the current tax relating to the corpAorate subsidiaries and certain
‘branches where the tax payable on profits is the liability of the LLP and not the individual Members.

The current tax expense is based on taxable profits of the corporate subsidiaries and branches -
consolidated within these financial statements. Taxable profit excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable. or
deductible. The group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.-

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are -
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
“temporary differences can be utilised. '

. Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the group’s balance sheet when the group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Client receivables

Client receivables are initially recognised at fair value, and are subsequentiy reduced for estimated
irrecoverable amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash in hand, on demand deposits and other short-term highly
liquid investments.
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2, Accounting policies (continued)
Trade payables: -

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently reduced for discounts glven
by suppllers . .

Leases
The Group as a lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and-a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements
-in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less) and leases of low value assets (such as tablets and personal computers small items of office furniture
and telephones). For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on
“a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate_cannot be readily
determined, the lessee uses its incremental borrowing rate.’

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

o leed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), Iess any lease incentives
receivable;

o Variable lease payments that depend on an |ndex or rate, initially measured usmg the index or
rate at the commencement date; :
The amount expected to be payable by the.lessee under residual value guarantees
The exercise price of purchase options, if the.lessee is reasonably certain to-exercise the options;
and

e Payments of penalties for ten’mnatmg the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option
to terminate the lease.

“The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the coneolidated statement of financial position.

The lease. Iiability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect inferest on the
lease liability (using the effective |nterest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.

The Group remeasures the Iease Ilablllty (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use asset) whenever:

. The'lease term"has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting
in a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

e The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value; in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change
is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

¢ Alease contract is. modified and the lease madification is not accounted for as a separate lease,
in which case the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the

. modification.

The Group did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease
‘payments made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial
direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and |mpa|rment
losses. .

When'ever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the
site on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and measured under IAS 37. To the extent that the costs
relate to a right-of-use asset, the costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories. ‘

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying
asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects
that the Group expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.
‘The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the consolidated statement of financial position. -

The Group abplies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is. impaired and accounts for any
identified impairment loss.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in ‘Other operatlng
expenses’ in profit or loss (see Notes 14 and 18).

As a practical expedient, IFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead
account for any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Group has not
used this practical expedient. For contracts that contain a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand- .
alone price of the non- -lease components.

The Group as lessor

. Leases for which the Group is a lessor.are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head lease and the sublease as two separate
contracts. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the camrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the
Group's finance lease receivables. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect
a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Members’ interests and current and nén-current debts due to and from Members

Members subscribe capital to the firm in proportion to their equity interest in the firm. Members’ capital
may only be withdrawn when a Member retires from the LLP. As Members may retire from the LLP with
120 days' notice, Members’ capital has been classified as a current liability. Drawings by Members on
account of unallocated profits have been classified as Members' current assets W|th|n Members’
interests.
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2, Accounting policies (continued)

Provrsrons

;Provnsmns are: recognrsed when the group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is
probable that the group will be required to ‘settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance sheét
date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is material. The increase during the period
in the discounted amount arising from the passage of time and the effect of any change in the discount
rate is charged to the income statement as a finance cost. : .

"The group maintains an approprlate level of professnonal indemnity insurance cover which is revrewed'
~annually. Provision or disclosure as appropriate is made for material costs that may arise from any
_ claims against the group.

Bank borrowings

Interest—beanng bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the value of proceeds on initial recognmon
Interest is included in finance cost and is determined using the effective interest rate method.

Retirement be_nefit cbligations

~

Contributions to the defined contribution schemes are charged to the income statement when 'they
.become payable. Differences between: contributions payable in the period and contributions. actually paid
are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the balance sheet. .

Defined benefit pension scheme liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected- unit
credit method and discounted at a rate determined by reference to the current estimated rate of return
on a high quality sterling corporate bond of equivalent term to the scheme liabilities. Defined benefit
~ pension scheme assets are measured at fair value. Actuarial valuations are performed as at each balance
sheet date based on full valuations obtained at least triennially and updated for subsequent changes in
material assumptions. The resulting net defined benefit asset or I|ab|||ty is presented separately on the
face of the balance sheet.

The interest cost arising from the unwundlng of the discount net of the expected retum on scheme assets is
recognised as a finance cost. .

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the pen'od in which they occur in the statement_of
comprehensive income. .

3. Critical accounting judgements and key eources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of group financial statements under IFRS requires management to make judgements
and estimations that affect the reported values of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities. These are
reviewed on an ongonng basis.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

. Management are of the opinion that there are no judgements -critical in the appllcatlon of the Group’s:
accounting policies:

Key sources of estimation uncertainty '
The key assumptnons concerning the future and other key sources of estlmatron uncenalnty at the

reporting period that may have a.significant risk of causing material adjustment of the carrylng amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next fi nanC|aI year, are discussed below.
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3. Cntlcal accountmg judgements and key sources of estlmatlon uncertalnty (contlnued)

Prowsmn for post-employment benefits ,
. Estimates are requrred in the ‘accounting for defined benefit pension plans, including the selectlon of
discount rates, inflation rates, mortality rates and the prediction of the rate of future salary and pension
increases. These estimates are made by management based on the advice of qualified experts. Details

of the assumptions used and the sensitivity of the benefit obligation to these assumptions are set out in
" Note 21. In the current year, the net retirement benefit scheme deficit is valued at £7.7 million (2022:
- £7.05 million). .

Other estimates

Amounts to be billed to clients

Estimation uncertainty exists regarding the amount that will ultimately be recovered from clients in
respect of unbilled revenue at the year end, and has been identified as another estimate. Amounts to
_be billed to clients are valued on the basis of recorded time at the year end, then provided against for -
factors such as historical-recovery rates and contingencies. In the current year these are valued at
£125.3 million (2022: £118.6 million).

Client receivables provision

The valuation of the prowsmn for irrecoverable client receivables is a key estimate. In the current
year, this provision is valued at £17.0 million (2022: £17.7 million). This is an estimate of the
likelihood of default based on an analysis of historical recovery rates, whilst incorporating
expectations of current and future economic conditions.

If the: expected credit loss rates had been 5% higher than 31 December 2023 :

The loss allowance on trade debtors not past due would have been £0.07m (2022

. £0. 07m) higher. : .

- the loss allowance on trade debtors past due between 0 and 30 days would have been
£0.09m (2022: £0.1m) higher.

- the loss allowance on trade debtors past due between 31 and 120 days would have been
£0.16m (2022: £0.14m) higher.

- the loss allowance on trade debtors past due greater than 120 days would have been
£0.52m (2022: £0.57m) higher. :

4, Revenue !

2023 2022

£'000 £'000
Revenue generated by region: ; '
United Kingdom = , - 468,412 413,442
_ Continenta! Europe . o 596,317 553,229.
Asia, Pacific and Middle East . : 135,833 . 123,114

Total . C ) ' 1,200,262 1,089,785

All revenue is generated from the group’s principal activity, being the provision of legal services.
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5. . Profit before tax
2023 2022
£000  £000
Profit before tax has been arrived at aﬂer charglng :
Operating lease payments . . _

- —land and buildings : ) . .~ 800 . -889
— other . _— | - - 34 . 38
Amortisation of intangible assets - : : ‘ 529 2,898
Depre‘ciation of property, plant and equipment ‘ 13,438 14,735
Déprecfation on Right-of-use assets . ' . : . 47,186 48,790

. Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment . 377 3,691
Net foreign exchange loss B . 2,204 447

~Fees payable to LLP auditor Delditte LLP . . 1,789 1,690
A detailed breakdown of fees' payable to Deloitte LLP is provided below:
Fees payable to the LLP’s auditor for the audit of the LLP accounts 232 - 196
Audit of LLP’s subsidiaries and overseas branches pursuant to Ieglslatlon 386 372
Tax services ) ‘ - 1,052 922
Other services pursuant to legislation o ) . : 76 , ' 67
All other services . 43 - 133
Total fees.payable to LLP auditor Deloitte LLP : 1,789 1,690

Please note that remaining other operating -expenses primarily relate to subcontractor services,
marketlng, training, professional subscriptions and off ice costs.
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6. Staff costs
) Group LLP

The average monthly number of . 2023 2022 2023 2022
people employed during the year
(excluding Members) was: No. No. No. No.
Fee earners 1681 1,654 647 629
Support staff . : 1,562 1,537 508 500
Total , 3,243 3,191 1155 . 1,129

' ’ \
Staff costs incurred during the year . 2023 - 2022 2023 12022
were: . £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Salaries 362,023 333,007 268,603 245017
Social security costs 39,185 37,530 31,220 28,355 -
Pension costs* ) 9,208 5,400 ’ 9,340 5,436
Other costs . : 9,867 10,645 « 6,484 5,433

Total 421,183 386,582 315,647 284,241

*Includes actuarial adjustment's, see note 21 for details.

7.  Investment income / (Finance expense)

2023 2022

£000 £000
Investment income : .
Interest receivable . ) . ’ . . 1,227 . 9583
Interest on lease receivables ‘ ’ 92 . 11

7,319 964
Finance expense . , . :
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts - (415) " (223)
Net finance expense on retirement benefit scheme (300) (100)
Interest on lease liabilities ‘ ) _ : (8,401) (5,212)
“Unwinding of discount on provisions - ) ’ i (288) (220)

(9,404)  (5755)
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8. Tax -
2023 - 2022
£000 £000°
- Current tax ) ) . 38,672 35,279

38,672 35,279

In most locations, including the UK, income tax payable on the allocation of profits to Members is the
personal liability of the Members and hence is not shown in these financial statements.

The UK corporation tax rate increased to 25% from 1 April 2023 resulting in an effective rate

for the year ended 31 December 2023 of 23.5% (2022: 19%). - -~
‘ 2023 2022

! ‘ £'000 - £000
Profit before taxation. from continuing operations 453,448 . 383,229
Less: Amounts subject to personal taxation - . (405,417) (347,082)
Profits subject to taxation : 48,031 36,147
Tax at the effective UK corporétion tax rate of 23.5% (2022: 19%) 11,287 6,868
Different tax bases in other jurisdictions 28,179 28,009
.Adjustments in respect of prior years : : . (794) 402
. Charge for the period- ' 38,672 35,279

9. Members’ share of proﬁts'

Profits are shared among the Equ1ty Members after the end of the period in accordance W|th
agreed profit sharing arrangements.

. The average profit per Equity Member is calculated by diyiding the profit for the period,' after non
Equity Members' profit shares, by the average number of Equity Membe‘rs.

. . . . ' 2023 -2022
Group : . . " No. No.
Average number of Members’ 360 348 A
Average number of Equity Members ’ ' 240 - 234

' ' ' £000 £1000
Profit available for division among Equity Members ' 414,776 347,950

Average profit per Equity Member ' ' 1,728 1,487
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- 580

“10. Intangiblé assets - Group
Computer Consideration
! software  for client base Total
£000 £000 £'000
Cost
At 1 January 2022 ’ 31,668 2,227 33,895
- Currency translation adjustments 62 126 188 -
Additions ~ 117 - 117
Disposals : (498) - (498)
At 31 December 2022 31,349 . 2,353 33,702
Currency translation adjustments (20) (55) - (75)- -
~ Additions 13 - 13
Disposals (14) . - (14)
At 31 December 2023 31,328 2,298 33,626
Amortisation " '
At 1 January 2022 28,275 2,227 30,502
Currency translation adjustments ' 56 126 182
Charge for the year 2,898 - 2,898
Disposals ~ (460) - (460)
At 31 December 2022 30,769 2,353 33,122
Currency translation adjustments ' (78) (55) (133)
Charge for the year 529 - 529
Disposals (6) - (6)
At 31 December 2023 31,214 2,298 33,512
Carrying amount -
At 31 December 2023 114 . - 114
At 31 December 2022 -

580 .
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1. Intangible assets — LLP

Computer - Consideration . Total

software  for client base g
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cost '
At 1 January 2022 30,982 2,226 33,208
Currency translation adjustments 51 126 77
Additions - LT . - A
At 31 December 2022 31,104 2,352 33,456
Currency translation adjustments (14) (55) - (69)
Additions -2 - T2
Disposals (6) - (6)
At 31 December 2023 31 ,086 2,297 33,383
Amortisation ) .
At-1 January 2022 27,735 2,226 29,961
Currency translation adjustments 51 126 177
Charge forthe year 2,756 - 2,756
At 31 December 2022 , 30,542 2,352 32,894
Currency translation adjustments - (70) (55) © (125)
Charge for the year 518 - " 518
Disposals (6) - (6)
At 31 December 2023 "~ 30,984 2,297 33,281
" Carrying amount 7

At 31 December 2023 102 - 102
At 31 December 2022 562 -

562
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12. Property, plant and equipment — Group

Leasehold Computer Fixtures Motor’ Assets
improvements equipment 'and - vehicles’ um_:ler Total
fittings ~~ construction
£'000 £000 £'000 - £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost - :
At 1 January 2022 - 91,294 102,621 77,818 355 - 272,088
Currency translation adjustments : 1,986 . 1,373 2,403 . 28 - 5,790
" Additions 4 ’ 11,550 - 7,311. 1,706> 16 ' - 20,583
Disposals .. . . (15,631) - -(11,139) (7,360) - . (B) : - (34,136)
At 31 December 2022 ° 89,199 100,166 74,567 393 - 264,325 .
Currency translation adjustments (916) (931) (1,635) (12) - (3,494)
Additons . 12,614 4,254 4,837 74 8,504 30,283
Disposals ‘ B (6,277) (2,093) (1,294) (67) - (9,731)
Transfers o (407) - - - 407 -
At 31 December 2023 - 94,213 101,396 76,475 388 8,911 - 281,383
‘Depreciation : : . B
At 1 January 2022. 58,888 ° . 94,612 75,758 - 178 |- 229,436
Currency translation adjustments 394 1,328 3071 17 . 4,810
Charge for the year 7.972 5,012 1,726 - 25 - 14735
Disposals - (14,506) (9,385) (6,573) - “ - (30,464)
. At 31 December 2022 52,748 91,567 73,982 220 ) - ‘218,517
Currency translation adjustments '(982) -, {724) (936) (8) o - (2,650)
Charge for the year - 7,681 - 4,019 ' 1,705 33 - 13,438
Disposals - A (5,665) (2,055) (1,263) 67) - (9,050)
At 31 December 2023 : 53,782 . . 92,807 73,488 178 - - 220,255
Carrying amount . . \ ’ - ) :
At 31 December 2023 o 40,431 . 8,589 2,987 210 8,911 61,128
At 31 December 2022 : . 36,451 8,599 585 173 ) - 45,808

—~
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13. Property, plant_ and equipment — LLP

Fixtures

At 31 December 2022

24,952

Leasehold Computer ‘Motor Assets :
improvements eduipment .and . vehicles unfler thgl
. : fittings construction . .
£000 . £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
'Cost ) Co -
At 1 January 2022 68,909 82,617 57,853 259 - 209,638
Currency translation adjustments 621 728 1,525 16 - 2,890
" Additions ' 6,350 4,764 921 - - .'12,035
Disposals (7.863) - (624) (1,887) - - (10,374)
At 31 December 2022 68,017 87,485 58,412 275 -. 214,189
Currency translation adjustmenis‘ ' (283) (537) (973) 5) - (1,798)
Additions ; 4,509 3,003 3,104 - 53 8,504 19,173
‘Disposals (2,157) (588) (707)' (67) - (3.519)
Transfers (407) - - - 407 -
At 31 December 2023 69,679 89,363 59,836 ' 256 8,911 228,045
Depreciation ‘ S A A .
At 1 January 2022 45,115 77,526 ' 55,504 84 - 178,229
Currency translation adjustments 275 690 1,450A 2 - 2,417
Charge for the year ’ 5,538 . 3,238 " 1,281 22 - 10,079
Disposals (7,863) (622) ‘ -(1,880) - - (10,365)
At 31 December 2022 43,065 80,832. ° 56,355 108 - 180,360
Currency translation adjustments (46) (413) (861) 1) - (1,321)
Charge for the year ' 5,456 3,080 1,218 26 - 9,780
Disposals (1,628) (585) - (677) (67) - (2,957)
At 31 December 2023 46,847 82,914 56,035 66 - 185,862
Carrying amount ’ : . : B
At 31 December 2023 22,832 6,449 3,801 190 8,911 42,183
6,653 2,057 167 -

33,829
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14. Le'aées (Group as a Lessee)

Right-of-use assets

At 31 December 2022

Buildings Equipment ~Total
~ £000 £000 - £°000
Cost o
At 1-January 2023 _ ' -, 330,874 2,619 333,493
 Additions - | 64,439 306 64,745
Disposals (3,527) (25) - (3,562)
Currency translation adjustment (4,510) . (17)- o (4,527)
At 31 December 2023 38;1,276 2,883 390,159
Accumulated depreciation
At1 ;January 2023 141,323 1,722 143,045
Cu'rreney translation adjustment " 1,048 7 1,055
Charge for the year - 46,646 540 47,186
‘Disposals (1,646) (15) . (1,661)
At 31 December 2023 187,371 . 2,254 - 189,625
,. Carrying amount ' )
At 31 [?ecember 2023 199,905 629 200,534
189,551

897 /190,448

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is presented in note 18. The Group has various leases based
in different locations and on- different terms and therefore additional qualitative information is not

deemed necessary.

Amounts recognised in profit and loss:

Depreciation ekpense on right-of-use assets |

Interest expense on lease liabilities
-Expense relating to short-term leases
-Expense relating to leases of low value assets

Income from subleasing right-of-use assets

\

At 31 December 2023 the Group is committed to £0.4 m|II|on (2022:

(see Note 26).

2023 2022
£000 . . £000
47,186 48,790
8,401 - 5,212
800 T gs9
34 38
92) (11)

£0.3 'miilion) for short-term leases
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14. Leases (LLP as a Lessee) (continued) .

37

'Right-of-use assets _

Buildings

"~ Equipment

Total

14

112,677

. T £000 £000 £000
Cost ) . ‘
At 1 Janu_ary 2023 213,125 1,200 214,325
Additions . U 45,800 266 46,066
Disposals - : (1,827) (25) (1,852)
~ Currency translation adjustrﬁent ' (2,523) (15) (2,538)°

‘At 31 December 2023 254,575 1,426 256,001
Accumulated deApre'ciati'o‘n .

. At 1 January 2023 ‘ 100,448 723 101,171
Currency translation adjustment " 131 - ' 131
Charge for the year ’ 31,617 283 31,900
Disposals (1,646) (15) (1,661)

' At 31 December 2023 130,550 - 991 131,541
Carrying amount .
At 31 December 20_23 ' 124,025 435 124,460 .
At 31 December 2022 477

113,154
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15 Investments - Group and LLP

The financial statements corisolidate the results and financial position of the group, including the
subsidiary and associated undertaklngs listed below. The LLP has mvestments in the following
subsidiary undertakings: .

. Proportion of .
Country of

*Ordinary shares heid by another member of the group

Registered office addresses:

" United Kingdom

1 Atlantic House, Holbom Viaduct, Londbn, United Kingdom EC1A 2FG

221 Holbomn Viaduct, London, United Kingdom EC1A 20Y

3 Avenida Maisonnave 22, Alicante, Spain, 03003

4 11th Floor, One Pacific Piace, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong, Chlna

5Su11e 810, Shangn—La Centre Olympic. Street 19A, Sukhbaatar District, 1st Khoroo Ulaanbaatar 14241, Mongolia

ordinary shares or
incorporation  Activity ownership held
Hogan Lovells (Alicante) SL & Cia., S.C3  Spain Legal services 100%*
Hogan Lovells (Alicante) Limited 2 United Kingdom Dormant - . 100%
Hogan Lovells (Alicante) S.L. 3 Spain " Legal services 100%*
Hogan Lovells (CIS) 2 United Kingdom  Dormant 100%*
Hogan Lovells (Hong Kong) Ltd 4 Hong Kong Service Company - 100%
Hogan Lovells (Warszawa) LLP * United Kingdom  Legal services 100%™
Hogan Lovells Services 2 United Kingdom = Service Company 100%
65 Holborn Viaduct Limited 2 United Kingdom  Dormant 100%*
Hogan Lovells (Geéneva) Limited 2 United Kingdom  Dormant . 100%*
Hogan Lovells Limited 2 United Kingdom  Dormant 100%*
Lovell & Co Limited 2 United Kingdom  Dormant 100%*
Lovell White Durrant Limited 2 United Kingdom  Dormant 100%*
Lovell White Limited 2 - United Kingdom  Dormant 100%*
Hogan Lovells (Holdings) No.1 Limited 2 - United Kingdom Dormant 100%
Hogan Lovells (Holdings) No.2 L|m|ted 2 United Kingdom  Legal services 100%*
Lovells (Moscow) Limited 2 ’ United Kingdom  Dormant 100%*
Lovells Hogan & Hartson Limited 2 United Kingdom  Dormant 100%*
Lovells Hogan Limited 2 United Kingdom  Dormant 100%™
Lovells Limited 2 United Kingdom - Dormant ~ 100%*
" Hogan Lovells Pension Trustees Limited 2  United Kingdom  Dormant © 100%*
Hogan Lovells Trustees 2 United Kingdom  Dormant 100%*
Hogan Lovells Property Trustees United Kingdom = Dormant © 100%
(No. 1) Limited 2 o )
Hogan Lovells Property Trustees United Kingdom  Dormant 100%
(No. 2) Limited 2 ) .
Hogan Lovells Real Estate lelted 2 United Kingdom  Dormant 100%™
Loviting Limited 2 United Kingdom  Dormant 100%
Serjeants' Inn’ Nominees Limited 2 United Kingdom  Dormant " 100%*
Sisec Limited 2 United Kingdom  Dormant 100%*
- Hogan Lovells Corporate Services Limited 2 United Kingdom Dormant 100%*
Hogan Lovells UK Pension Scheme | United Kingdom  Dormant 100%
Trustees Limited 2 . ' : .
Hogan Lovells (Holborn Viaduct) L|m|ted ' United Kingdom Legal services 100%
-Hogan Lovells (Ulaanbaatar) LLC § ‘Mongolia Dormant © 100%
Hogan Lovells Services (South Africa) . United Kingdom  Service Company . 100%
. Limited 2 ' : '
" RJ Fenshaw Hughes Ltd 2 . United Kingdom  Dormant 100%
Hogan Lovells Services (Germany) Limited 2 United Kingdom *~ Dormant 100%*
Hogan Lovells Solutions Limited 2 Dormant 100%*
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15. Investments - Group and LLP (continued)

The LLP has the power to exercise, or actually exercises, dominant influence or control over the

following principal undertakings:
o . Country of incorporation Activity

Loviting (H.K) Limited 3 o - Hong Kong Legal services
Loviting (H.K.) (No. 2) Limited 3 S Hong Kong Dormant
S.| Nominees (H.K.) Limited 3 . Hong Kong ) Legal services
S.I. Nominees (H.K.) (No. 2) Limited 3 . Hong Kong. Dormant
S.I. Nominees (H.K.) (No. 3) Limited 3 Hong Kong Dormant
Lovells Limited 3 ] Hong Kong Legal services
Lovells (Hong Kong) Limited 3 " _Hong Kong Dormant
Hogan Lovelis Limited 3 : . Hong Kong Dormant
Thunderground Limited 3 Hong Kong Legal services
Hogan Lovells (Hong Kong) (No 1) LLP ! United Kingdom Legal services
Hogan Lovells (Hong Kong) (No 2) LLP 1 . United Kingdom Legal services
Hogan Lovells (Paris) LLP ' United Kingdom Legal services

* Hogan Lovells (Middle East) LLP 2 , _ United Kingdom Legal services
Hogan Lovells (Prague) LLP — dissolved 6 August 2019' United Kingdom Dissolved
Hogan Lovells (Shanghal) Intellectual Property Service China Legal services
Co Ltd 4 ) . .
Hogan Lovells 2 ’ ’ United Kingdom ~ Legal services
Hogan Lovells Horitsu Jimusho Galkokuho Kyodo Jigyo 5 Japan* : Legal services
Hogan Lovells Studio Legale ¢ Italy* .Legal services
Hogan Lovells (Luxembourg) LLP 1 ' _ United Kingdom Legal services
Hogan Lovells (Mongolia) LLP 7 ) Mongolia ) Dormant
Hogan Lovells (Australia)l(N‘o 1) LLP? United Kingdom Dormant
Hogan Lovells (Australia) (No 2) LLP * : United Kingdom Dormant

- Hogan Lovells (Australia) Limited Partnership 8 New South Wales Australia* Legal services
Hogan Lovells Services (Australia) Pty Limited & Victoria, Australia Legal services
Hogan Lovells 8 . New South Wales Australia* Legal services
Hogan Lovells Lee & Lee ® . Singapore Legal services
Hogan Lovells Indemnity Co. Limited 2 United Kingdom | "~ Dormant
Hogan Lovells (Iretand) LLP 1! Ireland - " Legal services
Hogan Lovells International Law Firm LLC 12 Saudi Arabia Legal services
Hogan Lovells Johannesburg Inc. 1° South Africa Legal services

*unincomorated undertaking, denotes principal place of business

The LLP has a 100% interest in Hogan Lovells a general partnership govemed by English law through
which legal services are performed in Hong Kong. Hogan Lovells' head office is Atlantic House, Holborn
Viaduct, London EC1A 2FG, United Kingdom.

The results and financial position of Hogan Lovells are consolidated in the financial statements of Hogan
Lovells International LLP. Accordingly, advantage has been taken of the exemptions provided by
Regulation 7 of the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 from the requirements for preparation,
delivery and publication of the general partnership's accounts.

Registered office addresses:

1 Atlantic House, Holborn Viaduct, London, United Kingdom EC1A 2FG

221 Holbomn Viaduct, London, United Kingdom EC1A 2DY

3 11th Floor, One Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong, China

" 4 1802 Park Place, 1601 Nanjing Road West, Shanghai 200040

5 15th Fioor, Daido Seimei Kasumigaseki Building, 14-2 Kasumxgasekl Chlyoda-ku Tokyo 100-0013, Japan

§ Via Santa Maria alla Porta 2, 20123 Milan, taly

7 Suite 810, Shangri-La Centre, Olympic Street-19A, Sukhbaatar District, 1st Khoroo, Ulaanbaatar 14241, Mongoha
8 Level 17, 20 Martin Place, Sydney, New South Wales 2000, Australia

950 Raffles Place, 06-00, Singapore Land Tower, Singapore 048623

10140 West Street, Sandton, Johannesburg 2196

" Fitzwilliam Hall, Fitzwilliam Place, Dublin 2 D02 T292,Ireland :
1226th Floor Tamkeen Tower, Al Yasmin Area, Riyadh 13325, Saudi Arabia
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15. Investments - Group and LLP (continued)

The LLP has a participating interest in the following associated undertakings:

Country of : .Proportion of ordinary
incorporation - Activity shares held
Hogan Lovells Global Services ! United Kingdom Service Company 50% joint venture
Hogan Lovells Solutions United Kingdom Consultancy Services 50% joint venture .’
(Transfer Pricing) Limited ' : o :
HL Tech Legal Technology & Netherlands Consultancy Services 50% joint venture
Consulting B.V.?2 ‘
<
Registered office addresses:

121 Holbom Viaduct, London, United Kingdom EC1A 2DY .
2 2Amsterdam Building - East Tower, Eduard Van Beinumstraat 10, Amsterdam, 1077CZ, Netherlands

Group Interests Other _
Group " Investments . Total
£000 £000 £000
Investments as at 1 January 2023 R , - 465 465
Investments recognised at cost - - -
Impairment - - ' . -
Share of Profit & Loss - - 2,083 : 2,053
Dividends Received - ) (262) . (262)
Investments as at 31 December 2023 - ) 2,256 2,256
K Group Interests Other

LLP : : Investments Total

. . £000 . £000 £000
Investments as at 1 January 2023 ] 10,952 - 203 11,155
Investments recognised at cost - - . -
Impairment : . - : - : -
Share of Profit & Loss : - 1,781 1,781
Dividends Received - - -

Investments as at 31 December 2023 10,952 1,984 12,936

Other investments are measured at fair value with any movements recognised through the income
statement. Group interests are valued at cost. ’
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"16. Client and other receivables
Group LLP
— — -

2023 2022 2023 2022

£000 £000 £'000 £'000
Amounts to be billed to clients h 125,322 118,624 81;410 75,469 -
Client receivables - o i 300,512 270,171 226,972 201,951
Amounts due from Members o 144,225 - 109,917 144,225 - ° 109,917
Other debtors - o 27,489 25,278 21,367 - 23,634
Prepayments : .- 52,357 - 42,992 43,862 34,284

649,905 566,982 517,836 445,255

There is no material difference bétween the fair value and carrying value of client and other receivables.
Changes in the amounts to be billed to clients balance during the year were not materially impactéed by
any specific factors. Client receivables are shown after impairment provisions for bad and doubtful debts
-of £17.0 million (2022: £17.7 million), movements on which are shown below:

Group LLP

2023 2022 - 2023 2022 .

£°000. £'000 - £000 £'000
Atstartof period - : 17,681 15,506 9,501 9,323
Exchange adjustments ' (583) 1,036 (203) 463
Write offs ' (2,869) (3,343)  (1,482) (2,240)
Charge ) ’ ) 2,722 4482 504 1,955
At end of period . . ‘ 16,951 17,681 8,320 . 9,501

In determining the recoverability of the client receivable Management considers any change in the credit
quality of the client. Specific provisions for impairment are raised against client receivables where full
recoverability of the debt is considered doubtful. Reasons for specific impairment could include the
client being unable to pay or a dispute over either the services provided or the fees incurred.

The Group has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the lifetime expected credit loss.
In line with IFRS 9, a provision is determined by reference to past default experience, as a proportion
of different ageing categories of client receivables. .

The group’s-client acceptance procedures include a detailed review of the creditworthiness of each and
every client before an engagement commences and the concentration of credit risk is limited due to the
client base being large and unrelated. Accordingly, there is no further-credit provision required in excess
of the provision for doubtful debts. . ‘ '
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Further details on how the expected credit loss falls into the ageing of client receivables can be found

below:
Group
. "Client receivables — days past due date

' Not past ) 31-120 . greater than
2023 A . Due 0 - 30 days days - 120 days Total
r\verage expected credit 1% 29 . 4% 43%
oss rate .
Estimated total gross 114,797 107,662 ' 70,733 24271 317,463
carrying amount at default . :
Expected credit loss - (1,481) (1,892) (3,122) (10,456) (16,951)
Client Receivables 113,316 105,770 67,611 13,815 300,512

Client receivables — days past due date
Not past . 31-120 - greater than '

2022 Due 0 - 30.days days 120 days Total
f\verage expected credit ‘ 29, 29, 59 35%
ossrate - . .
Estimated total gross : ‘ '
carrying amount at default 97,923 98,799 58,867 32,263 287,852
Expected credit loss ,( ,492) (1,965) ' (2,870) (11,354) (17,681)
Client Receivables 96,431 96,834 55,997 20,909

270,171



Hogan Lovells Intemational LLP Annual Report & Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 43

16. Client and other receivables (continued)

Clients are required to settle invoices on presentation or on such other date that is agreed in the
engagement terms for that client. Terms vary but invoices are considered past due after 14 days have
elapsed following the invoice date. No client receivables are held as collateral for liabilities: The ageing
of client receivables past due at the reporting date was: .

Group. ‘ " LLP

2023 12022 © 2023 " 2022

£'000 . £'000 £'000 £000

Not past due ' 113,316 96,430 87,835 76,845
Past due by 0 — 30 days ~ ’ 105,770 96,834 88,380 '75,703
Past due by 31 — 120 days C . 67,611 55,997 48,329 39,413
Past due by greater than 120 days - 13,815 20,910 2,428 9,990
' 300,512 270,171 226,972 - 201,951

" The carrying amount of financial assets including cash recorded in the financial statements, which is
net of any impairment losses, represents the group’s maximum exposure to.credit risk. The group’s
maximum exposure to credit rlsk compnses , .

s

— - Group I © LLP
2023 2022 2023 . 2022
£000 £'000 - £'000 ~~ £'000
Financial. assets _ 791,0?4 700,068 658,623 587,745
Amounts to be billed to cllents A . 125,322 118,624 81,410 '75,469
916,396 818,692 740,033 663,214

~

Further analysis of financial assets and other risks facing the group is provided in Note 27.
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17. Lease receivables

Finance lease receivables

Group o LLP

' ©. 2023 2022 2023 2022
£000 £'000 £000 £000
Undiscounted lease payments analysed as: )
Recoverable after 12 months . 12,065 . 275 - 175 275
Recoverable within 12 months . 434 . 113 . 101 76
B 2,499 . 388 276 351
Group LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
' » £°000 £000 £000 £'000
Net investment in the lease anélysed as: _
Recoverable after 12 months 1,662 . 282 187 282
Recoverable within 12 months 248 93 81 57
1,910 375 268 - 339

The Group entered into finance leasing arrangements as a lessor for the sublet of property. The
average term of finance leases entered into is 10 years. Generally, these lease contracts do not
include extension or early termination options.

Group LLP

2023 2022 . 2023 2022
] " £000 £:000 £000 £'000
‘Amounts receivable uhde; finance leases: '
Year 1 . S a4 113 1o 76
Year2 - " _ 456 100 - 100 100
Year 3 . 456 100, 75 100
Year 4 ' 408 s - 75
Year 5 . . . B 437 - . - -
Onwards ’ : ) 308 - - -
Undiscounted lease payments 5 2,499 388 276 351
Less: unearned finance income ) (589) (13) (8) (14)

Present value of lease payments receivable 1,910 . 375 268 337
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The following table presents the amounts included in profit or loss.

Group LLP
2023 2022 - 2023 - 2022
£000 .£'000 £000 £000
Finance income on the net investment in 4 ' :
finance leases (92) - (an - (6) 9)
. The Group’s finance lease arrangements do not include variéble payments.
The averége effective interest rate contracted is approximately 6.7 per cent per annum.
18. Lease liabilities .
Group LLP
2023 2022 2023 2022
' £000 £'000 £'000 £000
Lease Liability ‘ ’ ‘
At 1 January . 219,545 -~ 234,560 135,678 148,559
Additions . 64,583 37,680 46,065 25,085
Disposals . (229) ©  (18,768) (66) (12,506)
Lease payments ' (52,842) (50,137)  (34,789) (32,661)
Interest , 8,401 5,212 4573 2,581
Currency translation adjustment (6,260) 10,998 (2,920) 4,620
- At 31 December 233,198 219,545 148,541 135,678
Group LLP
2023 . - 2022 - 2023 . 2022
£000 £000 £000 £'000
Analysed as:
Non-current 169,902 - 158,338 110,823 100,574
Current 63,296 61,207 37,718 35,104
148,541

135,678

233,198 219,645
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18.  Lease liabilities (continued)
Group _ ’ " LLP '
2023 2022 2023 2022
£000 © £000°  £000 " £000
Maturity analysis ‘
Year1 _ | 50788 53665 37,214 34,424
Year2 . S 45847 - 40,865 31,155 28,016
Year 3 o " 46,934 37,668 - 31,551 23,855
Yeard _ - . 35502 38680 19,204 24,272
Years . 41,917 40,494 26,837 29,574
Onwards ' _ 38,076 23,823 16,112 2,486 -
Undiscounted lease payments s _ 259,154 235,204 162,163 142,627
Less: future finance expense . (25,956) (15,659) - (13,622) (6,949)

Present value of lease payments : . 233,198 219,545 148,541 135,678

The Group does not face a signiﬁéant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities.
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©19, Trade and otherpa'yables - : o 4 : .

Group " LLP’
2023 2022 2023 2022
£000 £000 - . £000 ?’000
Tradé payables T 241,641 233,308 192,268 A 188,489
Social security and other taxes ) 27,488 21,671 . 14,703 10,577
Accruals and deferred income 57,824 54,105, . 24,009 ’ 23,251
Amounts due to group undertakings - : - - 43,155 47,620

. 326,953 309,084 274,135 269,937

Group . . . LLP

2023 2022 . 2023 2022 -
. £000  £000 £000 - £000

Included _in current Iiabilifies o T _ 326,953 309,084 274,135 -269,937 .
Included in non-current liabilities : : - : L. - S

326,953 309,084 274,135 269,937 -

"There is no material difference between the fair value and carrying value of the trade and other
payables. - . . ‘

Amounts due to group undertakings are repayable on demand, unsecured and are interest-free.
BN
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20.  Provisions — Group and LLP

Provision for  Provision for” Total ' Total

Provisions are analysed as " annuities client claims provisions provisions
follows: o 2023 2023 2023 T 2022

‘ £000 - £'000 . £000 £'000

“'Current liabilites - ’ . 435 8,331 8,766 . 426
Non-current liabilities o . 6,256 - - - 6,256 _ 6,425

- : 6,691 8,331 . 15022° 6,851
Provision for cl?ent claims

, . . . ) .
Client claim provisions are the estimated cost of defending and concluding client claims. Amounts
provided for are based on.management’s assessment of the specific circumstances in each case. No
separate disclosure is made of the cost of claims covered by insurance. X

Provision for annuities

- The LLP has conditional commitments to pay annuities to certain individuals who are either former partners
. of the LLP’s predecessor partnership or dependants of those partners. An actuarial valuation of the net

present value of the best estimate of the expected liability for the future payments to-these individuals is
obtained at each period-end and any. change to the provision necessary is recorded in the income.
statement. . :

The provision for annuities is subject to actuanal adjustments’and is payable over the life of the annuitants.

The assumptions used by the actuaries in the calculatlon of the provision are the same as those usedA
in the valuatlon of the deflned benefit pension scheme, as set out in Note 21.

2023 2022

- £000 _£'000

At start of period ' ' 6,851 - 9,032

- Currency translation | ' ‘ . (19 - . - (82)
Utilisation of provision ' ' : (455) (445) .

Actuarial adjustment 16 (1,874)

Unwinding of discount ' 298 - 220

Net movement in provision : ) (160) (2,181)

At end of period ’ ’ - 6,691 6,851

Major assumptions used in valuation: ) : 2023 S 2022

o %p.a. % p.a.
Discount rate ‘ . 4.50 4.70

Price inflation _ ] . 3.00 3.20
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21, Retirement benefit schemes ~ Grohp and LLP

Defined contribution scheme
Employer contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes totalled £11,533, 824 (2022:
£9,904,287).

Defined benefit scheme

The LLP sponsors a funded defined benefit pension plan for qualifying UK employees. The Hogan
Lovells UK Pension Scheme ("the Scheme") is administered by a separate Trustee company. The
directors of the trustee company are independent professional trustees. The trustee is required by law
to act in the interest of all relevant beneficiaries and are responsible for the investment policy for the
assets and the day-to-day administration of the benefits. : )

. The defned benefit scheme of the LLP is closed to new members and all future accrual Under the
Scheme, employees are entitled to annual pensions on retirement. Benefits are also payable on death. -

Profile of the Scheme
The Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) |ncludes benefits for current employees, former employees and
current pensioners. Broadly, about 60% to deferred pensioners and 40% to current pensioners.

The Scheme duration is an indicator of the weighted-average time until-benefit payments are made.
For the Scheme as a whole, the duration is approximately 16 years.

Funding requirements

UK legislation requires that pension schemes are funded prudently. The last fundlng valuataon of the
Scheme was carried out by a qualified actuary as at 31 December 2020 and showed a deficit of £21.0
miliion. The LLP paid deficit contributions of £1.9 million p.a. from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2021, will continue to pay £2.15 million p.a. from 1 January.2022 to 31 December 2026 and paid an
additional £5 million contribution in two instalments in December 2021 and January 2022 and which,
along with investment returns from return-seeking assets, are expected to make good this shortfall by
31 December 2026. The next funding valuation as at 31 December 2023 is currently being prepared
and as part of this process the trustee and the LLP will review and agree progress towards full funding.

Risks associated with the Scheme
The Scheme exposes the LLP to a number of nsks the most 5|gn|f|cant of which are:

Asset volatlllty :
The DBO is calculated using a discount rate set-with reference to corporate bond yields. If assets
underperform this yield, this will create a deficit. .

The Scheme holds a significant proportion of growth assets (equities, diversified growth fund and global
absolute return fund) which; though expected to outperform corporate bonds in the long-term, create
volatility and risk in the short-term. The allocation to growth assets is monitored to ensure it remains
appropriate given the Scheme's long-term objectives. ' .

Changes in bond yields ‘
A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase the value placed on the Scheme's DBO for accounting
purposes, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the Scheme's bond holdings.

Inflation risk

. The majority of the Scheme’s DBO is linked to inflation, and higher inflation leads to a higher. DBO
. (although, in most cases,. caps on the level of |nﬂatlonary increases are in place to protect against
extreme inflation).

The Government's response to its consultation on RPI reform was published on 25 November 2020,
and strongly imptied that RPI will become aligned with CPI-H from 2030. The consequences of the
outcome of the consultation may cause the net pension asset to change.
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21. . Retirement benefit échemes — Group and LLP (continued)

Life expectancy :
The majority of.the Scheme's obllgatlons are to provide benefits for the lifetime of the member, so
increases in life expectancy will resuit in an |ncrea$e in the DBO.

Risk management

The trustees invest in growth assets to back the liabilities for the deferred members. In addition, in
July 2016, the trustees entered into a buy-in policy with the Pensions Insurance Corporation (PIC).
" to insure all of the liabilities for the members who were pensioners as at 13 July 2016. This policy
protects the Scheme against inflation, interest-rate and longevity risk for these members. The
trustees insure certain benefits which are payable on death before retirement. -

The principal assumptions used to calculate the liabilities under 1AS 19 are as folldws:

2023 - 2022

Key assumptions used: N % %
Discount rate . S 45 4.7
RP! Inflation . " 3.0 3.2
CPI Inflation =, ' o 22 2.4
Expected rate of salary increases : ‘ nl/a n/a

Future pension increases 2.0 2.0

‘The post retirement mortality assumptions used are based on the standard published tables "S3PXA"
as adopted by the actuarial profession. These were then adjusted to allow for future improvements in
life expectancy in-line with the Continuous-Mortality Investigation 2022 core projections and a 1.25%
p.a. long-term rate of improvement for males and females. On this basis the life expectancy assumed
for a male pensioner aged 65 as at 31 December 2023 was 22 years and for a female was 24 years.
Also on this basis the life expectancy at 65-assumed for a male currently aged 45 as at 31 December
2023 was 24 years and for a female was 26 years.

The principal assumptions all have an effect on the 1AS19 accounting-valuation.‘ The following shows
the sensitivity of the value of the defined benefit obligations to changes in these assumptions:

. : Approximate Impact on Scheme
Assumption Change in assumption liabilities

Discount rate Increasg/decrease by 0.5% Increase/decrease by £9,7m

- Rate of inflation < . Increase/decrease by 0.5% Increase/decrease by £4.9m
Increase/decrease expected o

Rate of mortality ~ lifetime at retirement by 1 Increase/decrease by £4.3m

year

In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been
calculated using the projected unit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that
applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the statement of financial
position. .
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21.  Retirement benefit schemes — Group and LLP (continued)

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

2023 2022 .
£'000 £'000
Fair-value of scheme assets . , y 116,650 112,450
Present value of defined benefit obllgahons . o ' (124,350) (119,500)
(7.050)

Retirement benefit deficit o (7,700)

" Amounts recognised in the income statement in respect of these defined benefit schemes are as follows:

2023 2022
. _ £000 £000 . .
"Interest cost : . . : _ 5,500 3,500
Expected return on scheme assets - - (5,200) (3,‘400)
' ' 100

300

Of the chan;ge for the year a net debit of £300,000 (2022: £100,000) has been included in finance exp'ense.

Actuarial gains and losses have been reported in the statement of comprehensive income.

The Scheme’s assets are stated at their market value as at 31 December 2023. Movements in the fair

~ value of scheme assets were-as follows:

. 2023 2022
) . £'000 £'000
At start of period” ' . . - 112,450 185,800
Expected return on scheme assets - ' 5,200 3,400
Actuarial gains/(losses)’ _ ‘ : -2,000 (72,200)
Contributions from sponsoring employer : : 2,150 5,150
Benefits paid ' o : _ (5,150) - (9,700)
At end of period ‘ . . , 116,650 112,450
The actual return on scheme assets was as follows:
2023 2022
 £'000 £000 -
Expected return on scheme assets o ' 5,200 3,400
Actuarial gains/(losses) on scheme assets L ) . 2,000 (72,200)
‘ ’ 7,200 (68,800)
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21. Retirement bénefit schemes — Group and LLP (continued)

The analysis of the Scheme assets at the balance sheet date was as follows:

Fair value of assets

2023 2022

_ £'000 £000

Equity instruments \ S 26,500 24,100

- Long-term.gilts and bonds : . 40,550 .38,250
Property . e : : ' 13,200 13,600

. Absolute return fund ’ 6,100 6,400
Annuities - ' o 28,600 29,100
Cash/net current assets . . ' 1,700 1,000

Overall, T : : 116,650

112,450

The overall expected rate of return on scheme assets is a weighted average of the individual expeded rates of
retum on each asset class. The expected return on assets is determined usmg current and projected economic

and market factors and after taking actuarial advice.

The present value of the defined benefit obllgatlon the related current service cost and past service
cost was measured using the projected unit credit method Movements in the present value of defined

benefit obligations were as follows:

2023 2022

. . £000 £000

At start of period : 119,500 190,300

Interest cost . . : 5,500 3,500

Actuarial gains from changes in demographic assumptions . ‘ '(600) (1,800)

Actuarial losses/(gains) from changes in financial assumptions 1,700 (72,900)

Actuarial losses due' to liability experience . ‘ _3,400 10,100

Benefits paid . ’ ' (5,150) (9,700)

At end of period ' ' 124,350 119,500
The analysis of the amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income is as follows:

2023 2022

. £'000 £000

Actuarial gains/(losses) on scheme-assets ) 2,000 (72,200)

Actuarial (losses)/gains on scheme liabilities ' {4,500) 64,600

~ Total actuarial losses (2,500) - (7,600)
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2023

Memt?ers' ‘Amounts Memb.ers{
capital -  due from equity -

gurrgnt Members other T |

liability .reserves otal

£'000 £000 . £'000 £'000

Members’ interests at 1 January 2022 102,104 (112,210) 431,011 420,905

Allocated profits - 359,134  (359,134) . .

Drawings and distributions _ - (356,841) ' - (356,841)
Capital introduced - 18,139 S - 18,139

Capital repaid (8,148) - - (8,148)

Differences on translation ] - - 23,199 23,199

Pension scheme actuarial gain - .- (7.600) (7,600)

Profit for the financial period' - - 347,950 ,347,950

gnoezn;bers interests at 31 December . » 112’095 (109,917) 435,426 '4'37'6.04

Allocated profits - 319,374 . (319,374) ) -

- Drawings and distributions - - (353,682) - (353;682)

Capital introduced 20,044 - - 20,044

Capital repaid (6,062) - - - (6,062)

Differences on translation - - (9,801) (9,801)

- Pension scheme actuarial loss - - (2,500) (2,500)

Profit for the financial period - - 414,776 414,776
Members’ interests at 31 December 126,077 (144,225) 5i8,527 500,379

Members' other reserves fank after unsecured creditors in-the event of a winding¥up. The amount of capital
that each Member is required to subscribe is determined by the Board and under the Members’ Agreement
of the LLP a Member can only withdraw capital after he or she ceases to be a Member or if their share of

the partnership decreases.

From 1 July 2014 non-equity members in certain jurisdictions were required to subscribe capital.
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23. Members’ interests — LLP

Members' Members'
capital - Amounts ~ equity -
current due from other -

liability - . Members  reserves Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £000

Members' interests at 1 January 2022 102,104 (112,210) 320,991 310,885

Allocated profits - 277,814  (277,814) -

Drawings and distributions - (275,521) -~ {275,521)

Capital introduced 18,139 - - 18,139

Capital repaid (8,148) - -+ (8,148)

Differences on translation - I - 17,859 17,859

Pension scheme actuarial gain - - (7,600) (7,600)

" Profit for thé financial period - - 261,185 261,185

Members’ interests at 31 December 2022 112,095 (109,917) 314,621 316,799

Allocated profits ' - 237,406 (237,406) -

Drawings and distributions. - (271,714) . - (2711,714)

Capital introduced 20,044 - - 20,044

Capital repaid (6,062) - - (6,062)

Differences on translation - - (11,799) (11,799)

Pension scheme actuarial loss - - (2,500)  (2,500)
Profit for the financial period - - 320,602 320,602 -

Members’ interests at 31 December 2023 ) 126,077 . (144,225) - 383,518 365,370

The members of the LLP have agreed that members' other reserves rank after unsecured creditors in the
. event of a winding-up. The amount of capital that each Member is required to subscribe is determined by the
Board and under the Members’ Agreement of the LLP a Member can only withdraw capltal after he or she

ceases to be a Member or if their share of the partnership decreases.

From 1 July 2014 non-equity members in certain jurisdictions were required to subsbribe capital.
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24, ' Notes to the cash flow statements
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- Group LLP
2023 2022 - 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000
Profit from continuing operations 514,706 445,519 395,386 338,857
Adjustments for: :
Amortisation of intangible assets . 529 2,898 518 2,756
Deprematlon of property, plant and equipment - 13,438 14,735 9,780 10,079
Depreciation on Right-of-use assets - 47,186 48,790 *« 31,900 31,583
Loss on disposal of property, 'plant and equipment 377 3,691 - 250 -
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 8,171 (2,181) 8,171 (2,181)
3"&?&’;% ‘éziﬁt;'f’ws before movements 584,407 513,452 446,005 381,094
Increase in receivables - (42,159) (58,851) (34,230) (51,203)
(Decrease)/increase in payables "(5,681) . 37,224 (16,840) 46,628
Cash generated by operations 536,567 491,825 394,935 376,519
Corporation taxes paid (40,812)  (37,979) (36,809) .(33,938)
Net cash from operating activities 495,755 - 453,846 358,126 342,581. .
2023 2022 2023 2022
. £'000 £'000 - £'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents comprise: '
294,702 252,243

Cash at bank

. 25. Capital commitments

318,848

266,059

. At the year-end the group.had contracted to spend £1.01 .2 million on property ﬁt-out costs and associated
professional feés (2022: £14.9 million). At the year-end the LLP had contracted to spend £99.8 million on
property fit-out costs and associated professnonal fees- (2022: £61 million). These amounts were not

provnded for in the financial statements.
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26. Operating lease commitments

At.31 December 2023, the group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

. . Group

Land and oth Land and oth
buildings ther  puildings er
2023 . 2023 2022 2022
£'000 - £'000 £'000 £'000
Within one year T 282 84 327 30
Between one and five years - 46 - -
In more than five years - - ) - -
282 -~ 130 327 30

27. Financial instruments '

Financial instruments comprise loans, short-term borrowings, cash and deposits, client receivables and trade
payables, Member’s capital and amounts due from Members. Financial instruments result in the group being
exposed to liquidity, credit, interest rate and foreign currency risks. Information about credit risk is contained
in Note 16 and the remaining risks are covered below. :
2
The carrying amounts of financial instruments are as follows:

Group LLP

- 2023 2022 2023 2022
£'000 £000 -£'000 £'000
Financial assets . )
Client receivables o C 300,512 270,171 226,972 201,951
Amounts due from-Members ’ '144,225 - 109,917 144,225 ' 109,917
Other receivables 27,489 25,278 21,367 23,634
Cash and deposits - . 318,848 294,702 266,059 252,243
Assets at amortised cost © 791,074 700,068 658,623 587,745
Financial liabilities . . . . .
Members' capital ' ' (126,077) (112,095) . (126,077) (112,095)
Trade payables C (241 ,641)‘ (233,308) (192,268) .  (188,489)
Liabilities at amortised cost ' (367,718) (345,403) (318,345) (300,584)

Net financial instruments : 423,356 354,665 340,278 287,161
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27. Financial instruments (continued)
Liquidity risk

The group has in place facilities to cover short-term working capital requirements but follows a policy of active
management and targeting of client receivables and amounts due to be billed to clients, to minimise the level
of short-term borrowungs All borrowmg facilities are arranged through the LLP.

© At 31 December 2023, the LLP had committed bank facilities for periods up to a year totalling £120
million (2022: £120 million). Atthe balance sheet date the group had not utilised any of these facilities, some
of which are repayable on demand. These facilities have been, or are being, replaced or renewed after the .
period-end and are now due to expire between October 2024 and August 2027 when they are expected to be
renewed or replaced

Trade payables of £242 million (2022: £233 million) are payable within 12 months of the balance sheet date.
Members’ capital is repayable when a Member retires. As 120 days' notice of retirement is requwed Members'
'capltal has been presented as a current |Iabl|lty : :

The amount of undiscounted cash outflows for financial liabilities is equal to their carrying amount as.both
trade payables and partner capital are non-interest bearing. These undiscounted cash outflows are potentially

- due for repayment immediately, subject to Member retirement, or within a two-month time frame. In practice
the. majority of the Member capital balance is viewed -as being of a long-term nature and in most cases
capital introduced by new Members is expected to replace that of retiring Members.

Interest rate risk ‘ ' . ’

Cash and cash deposits of £319 million (2022: £295 million) earned interest predominantly at a variable rate
linked to the Bank of England base rate. Interest is payable on a maximum of £30 million of the overdraft
facilities at a floating rate above the Bank of England base rate. Interest on the remainder of the £120
million facilities is payable at a rate linked to the LIBOR. The weighted average interest rate on overdrafts
was 1.5 % above base rate (2022: 1.5 %). Management recognises that interest rates are liable to fluctuate
and the group accepts this risk and does not consider it likely to be material. .

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivit); analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for .
non-derivative instruments at the balance sheet date. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared
_assuming the amount of the Ilablllty outstanding at the balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole
period.

If interest rates were 1% higher and all other variables were held constant, the group’s broft and -
equity for 12 months ended 31 December 2023 would have increased by £3,188,000 (2022:
+ £2,947,000).
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- 27.  Financial instruments {continued)
" Foreign currency risk

The group'’s income and expenditure is primarily in sterling and euros. However some fees and costs are
denominated in other currencies, as are certain of the transactions with the LLP's subsidiary undertakings.

\

- The group does not hedge or enter into forward or derivative transactions and is exposed to translation and
transaction foreign currency exchange risk. .

The group had the following net foreign currency denominated monetary assefs and liabilities:

Group . LLP
2023 2022 -2023 2022
£'000 £000 ~ £000 £000
US Dollar . 76,776 65,336 53,378 . 43,989
~ Euro o _ 180,129 - 199,517 139,917 - 175,199
Japanese Yen S 7,481. . 5,238 71,621 2,138
Singapore Dollar (M) - (794) - . -
Chinese Renminbi o 1,560 (6,303) 2,535 228
Hong Kong Dollar 4,183 _ 6,452 1 -
Other = - ' - 2,603 - 703 . 1,699 646
' 272,021 - 270,149 199,151 222,200

The fair value of all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, estimated by réferenoe to the net
present value of future cash flows, is materially the same as their carrying amount.

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table details the sensitivity to a 10% increase or decrease in sterling value against the relevant
- currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the year-end for a 10% change in sterling exchange rates. A positive number
"below indicates an increase in profit and equity where sterling weakens 10% against the relevant currency.
For a 10% strengthening of sterling against the relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit and equity and the balances would be negative. ’

Profit or Los§ Euro currency impact . US Dollar currency impact-  Other currency impact
2023 2022 - 2023 2022 2023 2022
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 - £'000 £'000
Group ’ © 18,013 19,952 7,678 6,534 1,512 530

LLP 13,992 - 17,520 5,338 4,399 585 - 301
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28. Related party transactions - Groub and LLP : \

Transactions between the LLP and its subsidiary undertakings, which are related parties have been
eliminated on consolldatlon

- During the year ended 31 December 2023, the LLP incurred costs of £14,880,000 (2022: £13,568,000)
through transactions with Hogan'Lovells Global Services Limited. As at 31 December 2023 the Group owed
Hogan Lovells Global Serwces Limited £3,339,000 (2022: £2,889,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the LLP generated revenues of £98,000 and recharged costs of
£1,369,000 through transactions with HL Tech Legal Technology & Consulting B.V. As at 31 December
- 2023 HL Tech Legal Technology & Consulting B.V. owed the group £152,000."

As at 31 December 2023, Hogan Lovells Solutions (Transfer Pncmg) Limited owed the Group £2,763, 000
(2022: £2,838,000).

The share of the proﬁt and the remuneration of the key management team for the year ended 31 December
* 2023 amounted to £25.7 million (2022: £24.4 million). This is a consolidated set of financial statements. The
members control the LLP and as such there is no one controlling party.



